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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL “RFP” NO.  PS20181514 

CONSULTANT FOR FLOW AND COMBINED SEWER OVERFLOW MONITORING SERVICES 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS NO. 1 

ISSUED ON THURSDAY JANUARY 10, 2019 

Q1 Part C Appendix C – Commercial Proposal: The total fees for the flow & CSO 
pricing (column G) are the # of locations (column D) x Unit Price (column F). This 
means the Unit Price for Flow Sites is 6 months and for the CSO sites the Unit Price 
is for 36 months. This brings up the following questions: 

a. Did you mean for the Description of Activities (column C) to include a Unit of
measure (such as “per site” or “per month” or “per report”), along with an
additional column with Quantity for each Unit of Measure, with the Total Fee
being = # Locations X # of Qty Units of Measure X Unit Price?

b. Part B.3.5.ii.a&b say the Flow and CSO sites will be “approximately” 6 months
and 36 months respectively in duration. Is there ever a scenario where you would
want a temporary site for less than 6 months, or a CSO site for less than 36
months? (If so, then how the price table is set up now isn’t going to work, you
would need the extra column with the Qty of unit of measure).

c. If you did indeed mean for the Flow sites Unit price to be for 6 months, when
Task 2a on the Flow tab says “Equipment Monthly Rental”, does it really mean
“Equipment 6-Month Rental”?

d. If you did indeed mean for the Flow site Unit price to be 6 months and the CSO
site Unit price to be 36 months, how do we invoice on a monthly basis, do we
divide the flow Unit price by 6 to get a monthly price, and the CSO Unit price by
36 to get a monthly price?

e. Flow monitor pricing is a combination of fixed and variable costs, and is
effected by quantity of meter and duration of monitoring. For the flow sites,
which of the following 3 scenarios should we assume in the initial 3-yr contract: 1)
6 months of flow monitoring, or 2) 3 sets of 6-month monitoring (i.e. once a year),
or 3) 6 sets of 6-month monitoring (i.e. once one 6-month monitoring period is
completed, the meters will be moved to new locations, and this will continue
throughout the contract)?
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A1 a. Refer to Amendment #1.

b. Flow and CSO monitoring stations are intended to be in place for a 
minimum of 6 and 36 months, respectively. If relocation is requested by 
the City in less than those times, a relocation fee (Line 23 of pricing 
table) will be applied and the station will continue its 6/36-month term 
at the new location. The City may also request extension for any 
monitoring station.

c. Yes, Task 2a in Table 1 is refers to Equipment Rental for the term of 
contract (6 months). The word “Monthly” should be disregarded. Please 
refer to Amendment #1 - Part C - Appendix C - Commercial Proposal 
Pricing (Jan 20, 2019).

d. Invoicing will be discussed with the successful proponent in the project 
initiation meeting, however for clarification at this stage, monthly 
invoices and progress reports for flow monitoring work shall be based on 
the completed tasks in each months plus monthly equipment rental fee. 
For CSO monitoring work, invoices shall include equipment purchases 
plus other tasks completed.

e. Several scenarios are possible. At a minimum, 15 stations will be 
installed in the first year. Depending on the City’s overall satisfaction 
with the successful proponent and approval of budget, more stations 
could be added to this contract in the next phases.  The Contract will be 
structured for the purpose of adding additional locations. 

Q2 Part A.6.1 says the initial contract is for 3 years with 2ea possible 2-yr extensions 
for a potential total of 7 years. If a 2 year extension is giving, did you mean for the 
monthly fee extension price on line 24 in the Flow & CSO tabs to be used for the 2 
year extensions? 

A2 The monthly extension fee (Line 24) will be used when the Flow Monitoring 
exceeds the six month and CSO exceeds the thirty-six months at the same 
location due to insufficient rainfall events or project needs. 

Q3 Part A.7.2 says the prices are fixed for the full term of the Proponents proposed 
agreement, and Part B.8.1 says the prices are fixed for any additional work for the 
first 3 years. Is there an opportunity to have price adjustment for each of the 2-yr 
extensions, or is the pricing fixed for 7 years? 

A3 If the City chooses to extend the Agreement after the initial three year term of 
the Agreement, there is an opportunity for the successful Consultant to submit 
a price adjustment at that time. 

Q4 Part A.8.2 says Technical is 55% of the Evaluation Criteria. Is there a breakdown 
available for how the 55 points is split up (i.e. 20 points quals of team, 20 points 
methodology, etc.)? 

A4 The breakdown of the evaluation criteria will not be provided. 

Q5 Part A.8.2 says Price is 45% of the Evaluation Criteria, is the price determination 
linear, i.e. if the low bid is $100 do they get 45 points, and someone quoting $200 
get 100/200 x 45 = 22.5 points? 
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A5 Yes 

Q6 Part 3.2.5.v.a/b/c says there needs to be an Interim/Final/Annual report, which is 
straight forward, but when Part B.3.2.e says that in the 1st week of every month 
the proponent must “collect, quality check and report flow on a monthly basis”, 
does it mean the data only needs to have QA/QC once/mo (i.e. “Finalized” 
once/mo), or does there need to be an actual report once/mo? 

A6 Part B.3.2.e requires proponents to report the results on their monthly checks 
on a monthly basis. It also reads in brackets “weekly in the first month”, which 
is to QA/QC the data every week for the first month after installation to ensure 
the monitoring location is an appropriate one and feeds the purpose. Data 
collection and quality check report could be in an email format. However, an 
“actual” report is needed for the Interim, Final, and Annual reports. 

Q7 Part B.3.2.f says “setup telemetry and upload near real-time date on FlowWorks.” 
Does this mean you want the data to uploaded to FlowWorks on a near real-time 
basis, i.e. very frequently, or did it mean something else?  

If you meant very frequently, what upload frequency do you require (since 
frequent uploads will decrease battery life, thereby increasing costs)? 

A7 The City expects data uploads (modem calls) every 6 hours. 

Q8 Part 3.5.v.a bullet # 2 says the Interim report must include “associated rainfall 
data (from existing City/Environment Canada rain gauges) for data to date.” We 
will send the flow/level data for the Flow and CSO sites to FlowWorks as required 
elsewhere in the SOW, but FlowWorks charges for rain fall data to be hosted, so 
did you want the rainfall data available in FlowWorks, or is it acceptable for the 
rain data not to be hosted on FlowWorks, and the city just provides us rainfall data 
in a CSV file, that we then incorporate into the software that we will be using to 
do QA/QC and to create the Interim and Final reports? 

A8 The City has its rain gauges set up on FlowWorks and will provide their data. 
No cost for rainfall data needs to be included in this proposal.  

Q9 Regarding the six (6) existing sites in the Cambie corridor: 
 

a. Will these sites continue to be monitored in conjunction with the 
sites stated in the RFP? 

b. Or will the six (6) sites become a part of the 23 sites stated in this 
RFP? 

c. Are these sites outfitted with equipment owned by the City? 
d. What equipment is currently installed in those sites? 

 

A9 Flow Monitoring related to the Cambie Corridor is not a part of this RFP. 

 
 


